MANCHESTER-BY-THE-SEA
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

TOWN HALL, 10 CENTRAL STREET
Manchester-by-the-Sea, Massachusetts 01944-1399
Telephone (978) 526-1242 | Fax. (978) 526-2007

Collection of Solid and Recyclable Waste Services RFI
Addendum No. 1
****
This Addendum modifies and forms a part of the Request for Information (RFI) documents dated
April 14, 2021.
This Addendum consists of the following: Sixty-eight (68) typed pages, including any supplementary items.
Where any items called for in the RFI documents are supplemented here, the supplemental requirements
shall be considered as added thereto. Where any original item is amended, voided, or superseded here,
the other provisions of such items not specifically amended, voided, or superseded shall remain in effect.
I. The following questions were received with answers issued as part of this addendum in bold italics:
1. Question: Small commercial units are included in the scope of this work. Are these commercial
units serviced under the current program or is an expansion beyond the current scope of work?
Answer: The commercial units referenced in this RFI are the same commercial units currently
served under the existing contract. These units refer to small real estate offices and the like that
leave out orange bags and/or a recycle bin with no discernable difference to a residential unit.
Any questionable items left curbside during the period of the agreement should be referred to
the Program Manager/DPW for further inquiry.
2. Question: How many commercial and designated non-residential units are included in the scope
of this RFI and are these units included in the building/ unit count table on page 2?
Answer: The Town’s best estimates are 32 buildings, and 109 individual units. Yes; these
numbers are reflected in the table on page 2.
3. Question: Page 6. Force Majeure: Would the Town be willing to revise this language in part
so that it reads: “...laws, regulations, ordinances including changes or interpretations thereof, acts
or orders...”
Answer: The Town is open to revising this language. Any such revision must be approved by
Town Counsel.
4. Question: Page 7, Section 12. Liability and Insurance: Would the Town be willing to revise this
language in part so that it reads: “…, as well as for claims for property damage to the extent arising
out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided and to the extent that such claim,

damage, loss or expense is caused by the negligent or wrongful acts or omission of the
Contractor…”
Answer: The Town is open to revising this language. Any such revision must be approved by
Town Counsel.
5. Question: Page 9. Would the Town agree to continue the current practice of 30-day payment
terms?
Answer: Yes; the Town can agree to this.
6. Question: Page 9. Would the Town agree to mutually agreed upon extension terms?
Answer: Yes; the Town is open to negotiate subsequent extension terms.
7. Question: Page 10, Section 22 Copy of Standard Agreement: Could the Town provide an example
or a scenario where a software licensing agreement would be applicable to this contract?
Answer: This language is boilerplate and can be modified or stricken if Proposers do not include
software licensing agreements as part of their proposal.
8. Question: Beverage cartons (milk, juice, broth, etc.) are not considered recyclable by the
Massachusetts DEP and Massachusetts MRF operators. Would the Town consider removing the
requirement to recycle this material type?
Answer: Yes; the Town is open to modify recycling requirements to meet the rapid-changing
industry and DEP requirements.
9. Question: Page 14 indicates that the contractor shall provide dumpsters and wheeled recycling
carts for municipal facilities at no additional cost to the Town. Yet, the Cost Proposal is seeking
a per pickup pricing for these services. Does these mean the Town is looking for these services to
be included in the base collection price of the contract? Or, that the Town is willing to accept
pricing on a per pickup basis, but would not accept other charges such as dumpster rental?
Answer: This section refers to the rental of such dumpsters and/or wheeled carts. The Contractor
shall not charge any additional cost for rental or incidentals beyond the price proposed under
Section 6, which shall be charged on a “per pickup” basis. As indicated elsewhere in the RFI, the
Town owns several containers, but to the extent that such containers must be replaced in the
future, or if additional containers are needed, they shall be rented to the Town at no additional
cost. To the extent that containers must be removed from (and eventually returned to) certain
seasonal sites, the cost for removing and returning these containers shall not bear additional
cost to the Town.
Dumpsters or carts and the required frequency of pickup are given in Appendix II (page 44) and
the intent is for the pricing of those to be reflected in responses in Section 6. Should the size
and/or frequency be changed over the course of the Contract, the cost or credit would be
reflected in the equivalent pricing item given (i.e., substituting a 42-yd dumpster for a 30-yd).

10. Question: Industry standard dumpsters are made of non-galvanized steel. Would the Town
accept dumpsters made of non-galvanized steel (or plastic). Dumpsters made of Galvanized
steel would have to be custom made, would be extremely costly and not provide the intended
resistance to oxidation due to the interaction between the galvanizing coating and dumpster
contents.
Answer: Yes; the Town is open to dumpster made of alternative materials.
11. Question: Page 15, Section 2: 35-yard dumpsters are a non-standard size.
allow the contractor to provide six 30-yard dumpsters instead

Would the Town

Answer: Yes; the Town is open to 30-yard dumpsters as a substitute.
12. Question: Page 16 states that White goods shall picked up "on a weekly basis, as necessary" and
"by appointment, as arranged for between Program Administrator and Contractor". Could you
please clarify if this is would be required weekly or on an as needed / appointment basis?
Answer: White good pickup shall be done on an as-needed basis, but the Town may require it
as frequently as once per week. While it is likely that white goods will be picked up less
frequently, the Contractor shall ensure that they have the necessary resources to meet a
potential weekly pickup.
13. Question: Page 19, Section 8: “The Town shall have the right to equip any collection vehicle with
GPS or other position or other tracking electronic system. The Town shall bear all costs of any
tracking device which shall remain the property of the Town.” Would the Town be willing to
forego installation of its own GPS system and instead be willing to allow the Contractor to provide
mapping and reports from the GPS system already installed on the Contractor's Vehicles? If not,
will the Town agree to allow the Contractor to oversee installation and agree to the condition that
the system will not interfere with safe operation of the vehicle and that the unit can easily be
transferred to a spare vehicle when the primary truck is down for maintenance?
Answer: Yes; to the extent that the Contractor’s vehicles are already equipped with GPS, the
Town is willing to forego this requirement and instead rely on Contractor reports, as necessary.
14. Question: Page 20 states that ALL employees of the Contractor must have a minimum of 10 hours
of relevant OSHA training. All of our safety sensitive employees (i.e. drivers, laborers,
technicians, etc.) receive comprehensive safety training tailored to the hazards of the work
outlined in this RFI. Would the Town accept a training program designed specifically for the
Waste / transportation industry as opposed to a federal program not designed to address the
specific hazards of the work described herein? Also, would the Town be willing to limit the
safety training requirement to employees working on the work covered under this RFI or would
every person employed by the contractor be required to receive this training? Alternatively,
would the Town be willing to modify this requirement so that “Contractor is required to provide
all training required by any State or Federal authority for the job classification used in the delivery
of services.”?
Answer: The purpose of this section is to ensure that the Contractor is only providing qualified
individuals to perform the tasks outlined within the RFI. Specifically, this refers to drivers,

laborers, and any other employees working within the public ways within the Town. It does not
apply to clerical staff, customer service representatives, managers, etc.
OSHA-10 safety training is an excellent industry-recognized program that demonstrates a
minimal understanding of safety precautions and considerations when working with heavy
equipment, and/or while working within public ways. That said, the Town is willing to waive
this requirement if the Proposer can demonstrate that an alternate program meets these basic
safety education principles.
15. Question: Page 21, Section 4 states: Contractor will assume all responsibility and indemnify and
hold the Town harmless for all illegal disposal of the material collected. Contractor cannot take
title to inappropriate, unacceptable, or illegal materials, especially if they are concealed in a bag
or dumpster. Therefore, would the Town accept the following modification: “Contractor will not
take title to any unacceptable, hazardous or illegal material that is reasonably discoverable at the
time of collection.”?
Answer: The Town is open to revising this language. Any such revision must be approved by
Town Counsel. However, the Contractor will be responsible for communicating with the Town
at such time of discovery and provide all details pertaining to the event.
16. Question: Would the Town allow the contractor to receive calls from residents from 7:30am to
5:00pm?
Answer: Yes; the Town is open to modifying this requirement.
17. Question: Would the Town agree to limit its right, upon reasonable notice, to enter upon any
property owned or occupied by the Contractor, to property associated with servicing of the work
specified within this RFI?
Answer: The Town is open to limit its right, but not give it up completely. The Town is open to
discussing alternate language to this section.
18. Question: Page 22, Section 4.8, item 5. Would the contractor have to be granted approval from
the DPW Director, if the driver were to return to the Contractor's yard at the end of the day
without dumping recyclables or solid waste, if the intention was to dump first thing the following
morning? This scenario is common especially in the event that collections run late in the day
and disposal / recycling facilities are closed and/or drivers are close to DOT regulated hour
limitations.
Answer: Yes; this is precisely the type of incident this paragraph intends to address. Approval
will not unreasonably be denied, but the Town is open to discussing a notification requirement
instead of approval.
19. Question: Page 25. Cost Proposal lists 3yd FL solid waste dumpster, would the Town accept a 2yd
or 4yd dumpster as an alternative?
Answer: Yes; the Town is willing to accept an alternate size, so long as the dumpster is sized
adequately to keep up with the Town’s needs. Proposers shall include pricing in their proposal.

20. Question: Page 26. Cost Proposal lists 9yd FL solid waste dumpster, this is not a standard size.
Would the Town accept a 10yd dumpster in its place?
Answer: Yes; the Town is willing to accept an alternate size, so long as the dumpster is sized
adequately to keep up with the Town’s needs. Proposers shall include pricing in their proposal.
21. Question: Page 32. Section 5. Could the Town clarify what situations would require the
contractor to provide police and fire personnel that are not employees of our have any contractual
relationship with the Town?
Answer: This is a typographical error. The term “Police and Fire Department” shall be replaced
with “Personnel” wherever it appears in this section.
22. Question: Page 33, Section 10. Termination of Agreement for Cause: Will the Town agree to
provide notice of any deficiencies and allow Contractor a reasonable opportunity (e.g. 15 days) to
cure prior to termination for cause?
Answer: Yes; the Town will agree to this.
23. Question: Page 34 Termination of Convenience of Town:
given the significant capital
investment required to perform the scope of work described herein, would the Town remove the
termination for convenience in favor of termination for cause?
Answer: No; this is language the Town is not willing to strike completely. The Town is open to
revising this language. Any such revision must be approved by Town Counsel.
24. Question: Page 36, Section 22. Commission Prohibited. Is the intent of this section to prohibit the
use of the Contractor from paying a 3rd party in securing this work or is this intended to limit how
the Contractor may compensate its own employee(s) involved in securing an agreement with the
Town?
Answer: The former. The intent is not to limit the Contractor from compensating its own
employees for any work provided to secure such a contract.
25. Question: Page 37, section 28. Audit and Inspection – Records for this type of service are limited
as we are providing a contracted service for an agreed upon fee. Payroll, with the exception of
compliance with paying in accordance with Prevailing Wage requirements, and personnel records
are considered confidential. Would the Town be willing to negotiate this clause so that the
scope of it is consistent with the services being contracted?
Answer: The Town is open to revising this language. Any such revision must be approved by
Town Counsel.
26. Question: Page 37, 32 – Will the Town agree to a mutual, fault-based indemnification as follows?
“The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its agents and employees from
and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including reasonable attorney’s fees to the
extent arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided and to the extent

that such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused by the negligent or wrongful acts or omission
of the Contractor or any of its officers, agents, employees, representatives, any one directly or
indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for who acts for them may be liable. The Town
shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and its agents and employees from and against
all claims, damages, losses and expenses including reasonable attorney’s fees to the extent arising
out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided and to the extent that such claim,
damage, loss or expense is caused by negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of the Town, or any
of its officers, agents, employees, representatives, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any
of them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable. In no event whether in contract, tort or
otherwise shall either party be liable to the other for any special, incidental, consequential, or
indirect damages.”
Answer: The Town is open to revising this language. Any such revision must be approved by
Town Counsel.
27. Question: Page 38, Section 33.1 - Is the contract funded under a grant with the Federal
Government? If not, would the Town consider removing this language?
Answer: The Town is open to striking this language.
28. Question: Page 38, Section 33.2 – In the event that the Town Accountant’s certification of
available funds is less that the face amount of the Contract and the Town shall not be liable for
payment requests by the Contractor (which would cause total claims or payments under this
Contract to exceed the amount so certified), is the Contractor still obligated to perform
Contractor’s contractual obligations while not receiving said payments?
Answer: No; if funds are not available for this Contract, the Contractor shall not be obligated to
fulfill its contractual requirements. That said, in the unlikely event of this occurring, official
notice will be provided to the Contractor by the Town. The Town would likely be pursuing
emergency funding authorization from the Board of Selectmen, and would appreciate a
continuation of services during this time.
29. Question: Page 42, Appendix I: Penalties and Fees – Will the Town agree to provide notice of any
deficiencies and allow Contractor a reasonable opportunity to cure prior to assessing penalties
and fees?
Answer: Yes; so long as deficiencies are not part of a recurring pattern of neglect or nonperformance, the Town will give the Contractor reasonable notice and opportunity to cure prior
to assessing any penalties.
30. Question: Appendix I, Item I, Could the Town clarify the expectations surround the daily call-in
referenced in this item? Is this current practice? Who receives the call? What happens if the
Town representative cannot be reached? Etc.
Answer: The intended practice would be for the Contractor to notify the Town that the route
has been completed and report any issues the Contractor encountered, as well as to ask the
Town if any issues were reported. In lieu of a direct phone call, an email or voicemail is
acceptable. It is the intent of the Town to contact the Contractor directly with any concerns or

complaints received throughout the course of the day. As such, the Town is open to modifying
this section.
31. Question: Appendix I, Item K, Could the Town clarify what scenario(s) would fall under item K?
Answer: This refers to the Contractor collecting items that were not properly disposed of in an
orange bag, items collected outside of the Town, private businesses (e.g. restaurants), schools
or other areas/ items not included in the RFI.
32. Question: Page 43 Appendix I, could the Town clarify the distinction between Item T and Items
A&B.
Answer: Items A and B refer to materials spilled during collection and hauling of residential
trash and recycling pickup, while Item T is in reference to municipal sites (dumpsters, etc.)
Indeed, this requires clarification, and shall be modified during the execution of any Agreement.
33. Question: There is no place on the Cost proposal to enter the tip fees for the DEMO, PLAS & GRIT
roll off containers. How should these be included?
Answer: Cost shall be provided under Item Q, in the Cost Proposal. Alternatively, proposers may
provide a breakdown of each of these items, separately, in their proposal. Cost shall be provided
on a “per pickup” basis and include all tipping fees in the cost.
34. Question: Are the housing authority locations listed in Appendix II included in the unit count
provided on page 2?
Answer: Yes. However, this information is generated from recent assessors counts and may vary
accordingly. The Housing Authority is a separate line item, as provided in Appendix II, and shall
be billed on a unit price basis, as provided in Appendix II.
35. Question: Will the Town agree to negotiate a mutually agreeable contract?
Answer: Yes; the Town is open to this. Final Agreement language is subject to approval by Town
Counsel. The Contractor shall note any and all exceptions to the Draft Agreement in their RFI
response.
36. Question: Will the successful bidder's proposal also be included as part of the contract?
Answer: Yes; it is the Town’s intent to have the RFI and Proposal form part of the Agreement.
37. Question: What is the annual item count for White Goods currently collected in Town (including
the Transfer station)?
Answer: These numbers are not readily available.
38. Question: What is the annual item count for CRTs currently collected in Town (including the
Transfer station)?

Answer: These numbers are not readily available.
39. Question: Can you please provide us with a copy of the current contract and any amendments or
extensions?
Answer: Yes; these documents are enclosed herein.
40. Question: Can you also provide the current rates for collection and disposal of solid waste and
recycling curbside and at the transfer station?
Answer: Yes; these documents are enclosed herein.
41. Question: Could we please obtain a copy of the existing contract?
Answer: Yes; these documents are enclosed herein.
42. Question: Could the Town please clarify the required services for each of (6) Town events?
Answer: From time to time the town sponsors special events (i.e. summer concerts, Chamber of
Commerce events) where an additional dumpster service will be needed. These events would
require an additional delivery and pick up/disposal as requested by the Town. In lieu of the 6
occurrences, the Town would accept a “standard rate” to be used as needed in accordance with
the schedule provided from the respondent in the Section 6 so long as clearly indicated in the
response.
43. Question: What type of equipment is at the Transfer station - is the vendor responsible for
providing any equipment?
Answer: The Town owns the 3 compactors at the transfer station. No equipment is required as
part of this RFI, however if the respondent would like to offer additional services they must be
clearly indicated in the response. All respondents are encouraged to visit the transfer station
prior to submitting a response. The Contractor is responsible for providing dumpsters and/or
containers, pursuant to Section 4.2.6 of the RFI.
44. Question: Could you confirm the transfer station tonnage is not included in the curbside volume?
Answer: Confirmed. The table provided at the bottom of page 2 provides a breakdown of
historical volumes, divided into curbside and Transfer Station.
45. Question: Do the curbside trucks ever dump volume at the transfer station?
Answer: No.
46. Question: Are the residents responsible for calling the vendor to schedule and pay for the bulk
items? What is the current charge per bulk item?
Answer: Yes; please refer to Section 4.3.4. The current charge is approximately $28 per item.
The new charge per bulk item is to be proposed by the Proposer in Appendix III.

47. Question: Does the Town have a breakdown of the quantity/volume of CRT’s collected?
Answer: No; these numbers are not readily available.
48. Question: Could the Town provide a list of the municipal locations that require services with
dumpsters?
Answer: Please refer to Appendix II of the RFI.
49. Question: Could you provide dumpster size and service frequency?
Answer: Please refer to Appendix II of the RFI.
50. Question: Could you forward the current WM collections contract and confirm the current annual
billings by the Town to WM for all the services provided under the contract.
Answer: Yes; these documents are enclosed herein.
NOTE TO ALL PROPOSERS: YOU MUST ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF ALL ADDENA IN YOUR PROPOSAL
SUBMISSION. THERE IS NO NEED TO SUBMIT THE ADDENDA WITH YOUR PROPOSAL.

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1
Attachments to follow this page

